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transactions and permits the reporting entity to reliably monitor the performance of discrete
transactions without the use of pro-forma measurements.

In the event the Boards continue to require the re-valuation of interests previously held in
connection with obtaining control of a target we believe it would be preferable to recognize the
change in basis as a component of other comprehensive income and not reflect the basis change
‘1 income until such time as it is supported by reference to an exchange transaction with an

unrelated third-party.
General Comment - Fair Valuing Insurance Contracts

Although we fully understand that FAS 141, Business Combinations (FAS 141) and IFRS 3, Business
Combinations (IFRS 3) require the re-measurement of assets and liabilities to fair value In
connection with recording a business combination, we believe that in practice, because there is a
lack of adequate, consistent, and reliable valuation guidance and procedural valuation protocols,
the result of directly applying the FAS 141 and IFRS 3 fair value requirements to insurance
contracts is a value that is inconsistently determined, not objectively verifiable, non-comparable,
and generally an unreliable estimate of the fair value of insurance contracts at the acquisition
date. Thereafter, if reporting entities were to periodically revise their fair value estimates, they
could not follow consistent methodologies as no authoritative accounting guidance regarding

subsequent accounting exists.

We note that the IASB and the FASB are currently involved in a Modified Joint Project to create
an international accounting standard for insurance contracts - the Insurance Contracts Phase Il
project. A key question for the project is the determination of a method of valuation of insurance
contracts in a consistent, reliable, and understandable manner. It is our belief that until all of the
significant issues the IASB is dealing with in that project are satisfactorily resolved there will be
no consistent and reliable fair value methodology and framework that can be applied in the
estimation of the fair value of insurance contracts. In the absence of a consistent and reliable
framework to fair value insurance contracts, we do not believe the estimates that result from the
fair value requirements currently existing under FAS 141 and IFRS 3 are consistent, reliable, and
verifiable, and as a consequence are not useful to financial statement users. Accordingly, we
recommend that the requirement to fair value insurance contracts in connection with business
combinations be suspended and deferred until the conclusion of the Insurance Contracts project.
In the event the FASB and IASB agree that the “fair valuing” of insurance contracts should be
postponed until such time as all of the issues enumerated below are satisfactorily resolved in the
IASB’s Phase Il Insurance Contracts Project they will necessarily need to develop interim
guidance regarding how insurance should be valued in a business combination. In this respect,
while we do not have a defined GNAIE “position” on what this interim valuation methodology
should be we would commit to allocating resources to work together with the FASB and IASB to
develop an interim valuation approach that is consistent, reliable, and verifiable.

Page 5 of 8




Business Combinations - Insurance Implications
November 30, 2005

Following is a list of issues that we pelieve must be addressed and/or resolved in the IASB's
Insurance Contracts Phase II Project prior to requiring the £air valuing of insurance contracts

in a business combination:

» They are private contracts with no reference Of secondary market where they can be
settled with the exception of certain life contracts that can be monetized as viatical
settlements, however, even here the terms vary greatly between settlement companies.

» The estimates of fair value rely on the use of modeling techniques with non-observable
entity-specific model inputs such as benefit utilization rates, which have a material
impact on the fair value estimate. -

» Need to determine whether to include the credit rating of the issuer and changes therein
on the fair value estimate. We believe reflecting the credit rating of the insurer in the fair
value estimation process is not appropriate as there 1s NO practical way to measure its
impact on fair value nor do we believe this theoretical value to be “realizable”. Stated
differently, an Insurer that 1s downgraded could ”“ theoretically” respond by

| opporturﬁstically buying back debt it previously issued when it had a higher credit
rating, however, practically speaking one must assume the entity is being downgraded
for a reason that would generally preclude an aggressive repurchase of previously issued
debt. In addition, with respect to insurance contracts previously written, the mnsurex

generally has no ability to call or otherwise extinguish the contracts prior toO their
designated maturity, if any.

» Need to address what to do about renewal premiums where contracts are guaranteed
renewable. It is unclear whether they should be included in the fair value estimate even
though the contractholder has no obligation to continue to make future payments?

» Need to provide guidance on how contracts should be grouped for basis of valuation.
Reliable measurements are usually only possible for groups of similar contracts.

» Need to determine how 1O model policyholder behavior. More specifically,
contractholders can generally exit the contract at any time and receive their accumulated
benefits in a2 lump sum Of . the form of a pay-out annuity that may or may not be life
contingent. Accordingly, should the reporting entity model policyholder behavior based
on an assumption that all policy and contractholders make optimal decisions to maximize
their economic returns even though in practice We know this is not the case?

How to develop a market measure of mortality and morbidity exposure.

Need to obtain market-based estimates for long-term einvestment rates for liabilities

whose duration exceeds the duration of assets available in the marketplace (e.g.

structured settlements) must be obtained.

» Need to develop methods to value embedded guarantees including assumptions about
usage- |

» Need to develop methods to generate market-based estimates of margins. These estimates
<hould combine both an expected rate and a risk load.

v V

We believe the above 1ssues need to be satisfactorily resolved before the fair value of insurance
contracts can be consistently and reliably measured in a business combination. We further note
that the IASB is considering 411 of the above issues 1N :ts Phase 1I project on insurance contracts
.nd we therefore believe We should defer to the conclusions reached in that project and suspend
the fair valuing of insurance contracts in the absence of clear definitive answers t0 the questions
noted above to avoid 2 mosaic of valuation approaches and methodologies that will not prove 10
be consistent, comparable or reliable and therefore not 4seful to financial statement users.
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Other General Comments
Premium Deficiencies

The requirement to include the fair value of intangible assets in assessing a premium deficiency
for short-duration contracts should be revised to specify that certain intangible assets related to
:nsurance contracts should not be included in the measurement of a premium deficiency. More
specifically, in the Amendments to Existing Pronouncements section, paragraph D13, FASB
Statement No. 60, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises (FAS 60), states: “A
premium deficiency shall be recognized if the sum of expected claim costs and claim adjustment
expenses, expected dividends to policyholders, unamortized acquisition costs, intangible assets
recognized for acquired contracts, and maintenance costs exceeds related unearned premiums.”
In the case of short-duration insurance contracts, in addition to the intangible asset recognized for
the difference between the FAS 60 insurance claim and claim adjustment expense Y€SEIve and its
measurement arrived at through purchase accounting, intangible assets are recognized for
customer lists/renewal rights. Intangible assets related to future insurance contracts, including
renewals, should not be included in the measurement of a premium deficiency.

Equity-method Investments

In the Amendments to Existing Pronouncements section, paragraph D5 APB Opinion No. 18
states “The investment, results of operations (current and prior periods presented), and retained earnings
of the investor should be adjusted retroactively as if the equity method had been in effect during all previous
periods in which the imvestment was held”. We do not believe this restatement would appropriately
portray the ownership interest in the previous periods. Moreover, we do not believe the
adjustment would be practical to implement for many reporting entities nor do we believe the
perceived benefit to be gained by financial statement users would outweigh the costs to

implement this requirement.

The Group of North American Insurance Enterprises (GNAIE) consists of the Chief Financial
Officers of twelve leading insurance companies including life insurers, property and casualty
insurers, and reinsurers. GNAIE members include companies who are the largest global
providers of insurance and substantial multi-national corporations. All are major participants in

the US markets.

The goals of GNAIE are to influence international accounting standards to ensure that they result
in high quality accounting standards for insurance companies and, to that end, to increase
communication between insurers doing business in North America and the International
Accounting Standards Board and the US Financial Accounting Standards Board.

GNAIE works to meet its goals through modeling of proposed accounting standards, analysis,
comment, and coordination with various end users of financial reports.
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We appreciate the opportunity to provide comments on the proposed Exposure Drafts and
would be willing to make ourselves available to discuss our comments and recommendations in

more detail.

Respectfully submitted,

rffr 41 foranT

Douglas Wm. Barnert
Executive Director

DWB:KS:mtf
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